AVI BIOPHARMA INC Form 10-Q August 11, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2008

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-14895

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Oregon

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

93-0797222

(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

One SW Columbia Street, Suite 1105, Portland, Oregon

(Address of principal executive offices)

97258

(Zip Code)

Issuer s telephone number, including area code: 503-227-0554

Indicate by check mark whether the issuer (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes x No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer, and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer O

Accelerated filer X

Non-accelerated filer O

Smaller Reporting Company O

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2).

Yes o

No x

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Common Stock with \$.0001 par value

71,199,251

(Class)

(Outstanding at August 8, 2008)

Table of Contents

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

FORM 10-Q

INDEX

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION		Page
Item 1.	Financial Statements	
	Balance Sheets June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 (unaudited)	2
	Statements of Operations Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and from July 22, 1980 (inception) through June 30, 2008 (unaudited)	3
	Statements of Cash Flows Six Months Ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and from July 22, 1980 (Inception) through June 30, 2008 (unaudited)	4
	Notes to Financial Statements (unaudited)	5
Item 2.	Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	14
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk	18
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	18
PART II OTHER INFORMATION		
Item 1.	<u>Legal Proceedings</u>	19
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	19
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	19
Item 3.	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	19
Item 4.	Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	19
Item 5.	Other Information	20
Item 6.	Exhibits	20
Signatures		21
Exhibits		22
	1	

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

BALANCE SHEETS

(unaudited)

	June 30, 2008	December 31, 2007
Assets		
Current Assets:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 18,509,474	\$ 24,802,562
Short-term securities available-for-sale	276,618	271,851
Accounts receivable	2,666,419	2,869,760
Other current assets	1,093,968	767,278
Total Current Assets	22,546,479	28,711,451
Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of \$12,332,638		
and \$11,816,549	6,474,073	6,825,145
Patent Costs, net of accumulated amortization of \$1,813,214 and \$1,725,074	3,522,911	3,066,625
Other Assets	34,709	34,709
Total Assets	\$ 32,578,172	\$ 38,637,930
Liabilities and Shareholders Equity		
Current Liabilities:		
Accounts payable	\$ 2,325,242	\$ 3,026,072
Accrued employee compensation	1,208,143	1,171,666
Long-term debt, current portion	72,804	71,099
Warrant liability	2,801,882	4,414,657
Deferred revenue	2,275,000	737,500
Other liabilities	143,835	331,335
Total Current Liabilities	8,826,906	9,752,329
Commitments and Contingencies		
Long-term debt, non-current portion	2,033,871	2,070,704
Other long-term liabilities	474,385	433,149
Shareholders Equity:		
Preferred stock, \$.0001 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and outstanding		
Common stock, \$.0001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized; 71,091,371 and 64,449,094		
issued and outstanding	7,109	6,445
Additional paid-in capital	264,358,554	252,732,858
Deficit accumulated during the development stage	(243,122,653)	(226,357,555)
Total Shareholders Equity	21,243,010	26,381,748
Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity	\$	\$ 38,637,930

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(unaudited)

	Three months 6	ended	June 30, 2007	Six months en 2008	ided J	une 30, 2007	July 22, 1980 (inception) through June 30, 2008
Revenues from license fees, grants and research contracts	\$ 4,982,963	\$	2,351,424 \$	10,607,580	\$	2,887,466 \$	31,573,590
Operating expenses:							
Research and development	8,164,698		9,160,816	15,637,509		15,478,457	198,045,126
General and administrative	1,696,796		2,030,796	3,679,475		6,334,681	53,832,368
Acquired in-process research and	,,		,,	2,212,		-, ,	,,
development				9,916,271			29,461,299
	9,861,494		11,191,612	29,233,255		21,813,138	281,338,793
	, ,		, ,	, ,		, ,	, ,
Other income (loss):							
Interest income, net	80,450		303,568	247,802		666,077	8,681,320
Gain on warrant liability	3,047,459		755,317	1,612,775		2,254,008	11,100,076
Realized gain on sale of short-term							
securities available-for-sale							3,862,502
Write-down of short-term securities							
available-for-sale							(17,001,348)
	3,127,909		1,058,885	1,860,577		2,920,085	6,642,550
Net loss	\$ (1,750,622)	\$	(7,781,303) \$	(16,765,098)	\$	(16,005,587) \$	(243,122,653)
Net loss per share - basic and							
diluted	\$ (0.02)	\$	(0.15) \$	(0.25)	\$	(0.30)	
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic and diluted loss							
per share	70,985,520		53,560,360	68,153,753		53,381,256	

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

(A Development Stage Company)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(unaudited)

	Six months er 2008	ıded Jun	e 30, 2007	For the Period July 22, 1980 (Inception) to June 30, 2008
Cash flows from operating activities:	(4 < = < = 000)		(4 < 0.0 = =0=)	(0.40.400.670)
Net loss	\$ (16,765,098)	\$	(16,005,587) \$	(243,122,653)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash flows used in operating activities:				
Depreciation and amortization	697,126		968,091	15,531,224
Loss on disposal of assets	439		58,239	374,998
Realized gain on sale of short-term securities available-for-sale				(3,862,502)
Write-down of short-term securities available-for-sale				17,001,348
Issuance of common stock and warrants to vendors	560,535		500,000	2,635,535
Compensation expense on issuance of common stock and				
partnership units	133,875			995,530
Compensation expense to non-employees on issuance of options				
and warrants to purchase common stock or partnership units	116,835		312,637	3,072,525
Stock-based compensation	2,100,337		3,154,836	11,700,744
Conversion of interest accrued to common stock				7,860
Acquired in-process research and development	9,916,271			29,461,299
Gain on warrant liability	(1,612,775)		(2,254,008)	(11,100,076)
Decrease (increase) in:				
Accounts receivable and other current assets	188,920		(1,107,178)	(3,448,118)
Other assets				(34,709)
Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued employee				
compensation, deferred revenue, and other liabilities	(973,523)		1,642,932	4,963,210
Net cash used in operating activities	(5,637,058)		(12,730,038)	(175,823,785)
Cash flows from investing activities:				
Purchase of property and equipment	(248,291)		(796,960)	(16,816,682)
Patent costs	(354,426)		(349,999)	(5,686,670)
Purchase of marketable securities	(4,767)		(110,417)	(112,980,980)
Sale of marketable securities			3,028,141	117,613,516
Acquisition costs	(11,375)			(2,388,991)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities	(618,859)		1,770,765	(20,259,807)
Cash flows from financing activities:				
Proceeds from sale of common stock, warrants, and partnership				
units, net of offering costs, and exercise of options and warrants	43,518		63,584	215,059,192
Repayments of long-term debt	(80,689)			(80,689)
Buyback of common stock pursuant to rescission offering				(288,795)
Withdrawal of partnership net assets				(176,642)
Issuance of convertible debt				80,000
Net cash provided by financing activities	(37,171)		63,584	214,593,066
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(6,293,088)		(10,895,689)	18,509,474

Cash and cash equivalents:			
Beginning of period	24,802,562	20,159,201	
End of period	\$ 18,509,474	\$ 9,263,512 \$	18,509,474
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING			
ACTIVITIES AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Short-term securities available-for-sale received in connection			
with the private offering	\$	\$ \$	17,897,000
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on short-term			
securities available-for-sale	\$	\$ (18,418) \$	
Issuance of common stock and warrants in satisfaction of			
liabilities	\$	\$ \$	545,000
Issuance of common stock for building purchase	\$	\$ 750,000 \$	750,000
Assumption of long-term debt for building purchase	\$	\$ 2,199,792 \$	2,199,792
Issuance of common stock for Ercole assets	\$ 8,075,233	\$ \$	
Assumption of liabilities for Ercole assets	\$ 2,124,274	\$ \$	

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The financial information included herein for the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007 and the financial information as of June 30, 2008 is unaudited; however, such information reflects all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, which, in the opinion of management, are necessary for a fair presentation of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods. The financial information as of December 31, 2007 is derived from AVI BioPharma, Inc. s (the Company s) Form 10-K. The interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes thereto included in the Company s Form 10-K. The results of operations for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full year.

Stock-based compensation costs are generally based on the fair value calculated from the Black-Scholes option-pricing model on the date of grant for stock options and on the date of enrollment for the Plan. The fair value of stock grants is recognized as compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the grants. Stock options granted to employees are service-based and typically vest over four years.

The fair market values of stock options granted during the periods presented were measured on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, with the following assumptions:

Three and Six Months Ended June 30,	2008	2007
Risk-free interest rate	1.9%-4.4%	4.5%-5.1%
Expected dividend yield	0%	0%
Expected lives	3.6-9.1 years	3.7-8.7 years
Expected volatility	81.0%-90.6%	84.1%-90.6%

The risk-free interest rate is estimated using an average of treasury bill interest rates. The expected dividend yield is zero as the Company has not paid any dividends to date and does not expect to pay dividends in the future. The expected lives are estimated using expected and historical exercise behavior. The expected volatility is estimated using historical calculated volatility and considers factors such as future events or circumstances that could impact volatility.

As part of the requirements of SFAS 123R, the Company is required to estimate potential forfeiture of stock grants and adjust compensation cost recorded accordingly. The estimate of forfeitures will be adjusted over the requisite service period to the extent that actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from such estimates. Changes in estimated forfeitures will be recognized through a cumulative catch-up in the period of change and will also impact the amount of stock compensation expense to be recognized in future periods.

Table of Contents

A summary of the Company s stock option compensation activity with respect to the six months ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Stock Options	Shares	Weighted Average Exercisable Price	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term	Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2008	6,304,453	\$ 4.60		
Granted	2,042,807	\$ 1.29		
Exercised	(6,761)	\$ 1.31		
Canceled or expired	(553,717)	\$ 6.27		
Outstanding at June 30, 2008	7,786,782	\$ 3.61	6.38	\$
Vested at June 30, 2008 and expected to vest	7,732,325	\$ 3.62	6.36	\$
•				
Exercisable at June 30, 2008	5,063,956	\$ 4.36	4.88	\$

The weighted average fair value per share of stock-based payments granted to employees during the six months ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 was \$1.04 and \$2.26, respectively. During the same periods, the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised were \$1,831 and \$4,677, and the total fair value of stock options that vested were \$1,483,612 and \$2,097,464, respectively.

As of June 30, 2008, there was \$3,448,955 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Plan. These costs are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.0 years.

During the six months ended June 30, 2008, \$8,857 was received for the exercise of stock options. The Company is obligated to issue shares from the 2002 Equity Incentive Plan upon the exercise of stock options. The Company does not currently expect to repurchase shares from any source to satisfy its obligations under the Plan.

The following are the stock-based compensation costs recognized in the Company s statements of operations:

		Three Months Ended	Six Months Ended
		June 30, 2008	June 30, 2008
Research and development	\$	386,498	\$ 890,516
General and administrative		219,910	593,096
Total	\$	606,408	\$ 1,483,612
		Three Months Ended June 30, 2007	Six Months Ended June 30, 2007
Research and development	\$	487,648	\$ 884,685
General and administrative		306,418	1,212,779
Total	¢	794.066	\$ 2.097.464

Table of Contents

The 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) provides that eligible employees may contribute, through payroll, deductions of up to 10% of their earnings toward the purchase of the Company s Common Stock at 85% of the fair market value at specific dates. On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123R, which requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to the Company s employees and directors related to the ESPP, based on estimated fair values. During the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008 and 2007, the total compensation expense for participants in the ESPP was immaterial.

After the acquisition of Ercole Biotechnology, Inc (Ercole), the Company recognized severance payments to certain Ercole employees of \$616,725 paid using the Company s common stock.

On March 27, 2007, in connection with his resignation, the Company entered into a Separation and Release Agreement with AVI s former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to this agreement, he may exercise his previously granted options until the earlier of the termination date specified in the respective stock option grant agreements or March 28, 2010. This modification of these stock options increased compensation costs by \$1,057,372 for the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2007.

In the first quarter of 2008, the Company granted 333,000 shares of restricted stock to its new Chief Executive Officer. These shares vest over a period of four years. During the three and six-month periods ended June 30, 2008, the Company recognized compensation expense related to these shares of \$15,830 and \$133,875, respectively.

The Company records the fair value of stock options granted to non-employees in exchange for services in accordance with EITF 96-18, *Accounting for Equity Instruments That are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.* The fair value of the options granted is expensed when the measurement date is known. The performance for services was satisfied on the grant date for stock options granted to non-employees. The total fair value of the options granted to non-employees during the six months ended June 30, 2008 and June 30, 2007 was \$116,835 and \$312,637, respectively, which was expensed to research and development.

Warrants. Certain of the Company s warrants issued in connection with financing arrangements are classified as liabilities in accordance with EITF 00-19, Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company s Own Stock. The fair market value of these warrants is recorded on the balance sheet at issuance and marked to market at each financial reporting period. The change in the fair value of the warrants is recorded in the Statement of Operations as a non-cash gain (loss) and is estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Three and Six Months Ended June 30,	2008	2007
Risk-free interest rate	2.2%-3.3%	4.8%
Expected dividend yield	0%	0%
Expected lives	0.4-4.7 years	1.4-2.9 years
Expected volatility	63.6%-78.7%	82.7%-89.5%

Table of Contents

The risk-free interest rate is estimated using an average of treasury bill interest rates. The expected dividend yield is zero as the Company has not paid any dividends to date and does not expect to pay dividends in the future. The expected lives are based on the remaining contractual lives of the related warrants. The expected volatility is estimated using historical calculated volatility and considers factors such as future events or circumstances that could impact volatility.

A summary of the Company s warrant activity with respect to the six months ended June 30, 2008 is as follows:

Warrants	Shares	Weighted Average Exercisable Price	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Term
Outstanding at January 1, 2008	13,856,411	\$ 8.1	2
Granted	445,985	\$ 1.7	7
Canceled or expired	(2,565,000)	\$ 7.0	0
Outstanding at June 30, 2008	11,737,396	\$ 8.1	2 2.97

For warrants classified as permanent equity in accordance with EITF 00-19, the fair value of the warrants is recorded in shareholders equity and no further adjustments are made.

Commitments and Contingencies. In the normal course of business, the Company may be named as a party to various legal claims, actions and complaints, including matters involving employment, intellectual property, effects from the use of drugs utilizing our technology, or others. It is impossible to predict with certainty whether any resulting liability would have a material adverse effect on the Company s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The Company measures at fair value certain financial assets and liabilities, including cash equivalents. SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS No. 157) specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company s market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair-value hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets;

Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-derived valuations in which all significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable in active markets; and

Level 3 Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant value drivers are unobservable.

Table of Contents

	F	air Valu	e Measurement as	of June 30, 2008	
	Total		Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 18,509,474	\$	18,509,474		
Short-term securities available-for-sale	276,618		276,618		
Total	\$ 18,786,092	\$	18,786,092		

The Company has deferred the adoption of SFAS No. 157 with respect to nonfinancial assets and liabilities in accordance with the provisions of FSP FAS 157-2, Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157. Items in this classification include intangible assets and certain other items.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other current monetary assets and liabilities approximate fair value because of the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

License Arrangements. License arrangements may consist of non-refundable upfront license fees, data transfer fees, research reimbursement payments, exclusive licensed rights to patented or patent pending compounds, technology access fees, various performance or sales milestones and future product royalty payments. Some of these arrangements are multiple element arrangements.

The Company defers recognition of non-refundable upfront fees if it has continuing performance obligations without which the technology, right, product or service conveyed in conjunction with the non-refundable fee has no utility to the licensee that is separate and independent of Company performance under the other elements of the arrangement. In addition, if the Company has continuing involvement through research and development services that are required because its know-how and expertise related to the technology is proprietary to the Company, or can only be performed by the Company, then such up-front fees are deferred and recognized over the period of continuing involvement.

Payments related to substantive, performance-based milestones in a research and development arrangement are recognized as revenue upon the achievement of the milestones as specified in the underlying agreements when they represent the culmination of the earnings process.

Government Research Contract Revenue. The Company recognizes revenues from federal research contracts during the period in which the related expenditures are incurred. The Company presents these revenues and related expenses at gross in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with EITF 99-19, Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Net as an Agent.

Income Taxes. In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The provisions of FIN 48 are effective

Table of Contents

for the Company as of January 1, 2007, with the cumulative effect, if any, of applying FIN 48 recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings in the year of adoption. The Company adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, which did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements. See Note 9.

Note 2. Liquidity

Since its inception in 1980 through June 30, 2008, the Company has incurred losses of approximately \$243 million, and is still in the development stage. The Company has not generated any material revenue from product sales to date and there can be no assurance that revenues from product sales will be achieved. Moreover, even if the Company does achieve revenues from product sales, the Company expects to incur operating losses over the next several years.

The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. The Company s ability to achieve a profitable level of operations in the future will depend in large part on completing product development of its antisense products, obtaining regulatory approvals for such products, and bringing these products to market. During the period required to develop these products, the Company will require substantial additional financing. There is no assurance that such financing will be available when needed or that the Company s planned products will be commercially successful. The Company believes it has sufficient cash to fund operations at least through the first quarter of 2009, inclusive of future receipts from billings on existing government contracts, as described below. For 2008, the Company expects expenditures for operations, net of government funding, including collaborative efforts and GMP facilities to be approximately \$14 to \$16 million. Expenditures for 2008 could exceed this level if the Company undertakes additional collaborative efforts. If necessary, however, the Company s management has the ability to curtail certain expenditures because a significant amount of the Company s costs are variable.

In December 2006, the Company announced the execution of a two-year, \$28 million research contract with the Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA), an agency of the United States Department of Defense (DoD). The contract is directed toward funding the Company s development of antisense therapeutics to treat the effects of Ebola, Marburg and Junin hemorrhagic viruses, which are seen by DoD as potential biological warfare and bioterrorism agents. During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recognized \$8,630,830 in research contract revenue from this contract. Funding under this contract is expected over three years, with approximately \$24.5 million committed through the end of 2008 (including amounts received in 2007), and the remainder anticipated in the first five months of 2009.

In January 2006, the Company announced that the final version of the 2006 defense appropriations act had been approved, which included an allocation of \$11.0 million to fund the Company s ongoing defense-related programs. Net of government administrative costs, it is anticipated that the Company will receive up to \$9.8 million under this allocation. The Company s NeuGene® technology is expected to be used to continue developing therapeutic agents against Ebola, Marburg and Dengue viruses, as well as to continue developing countermeasures for anthrax exposure and antidotes for ricin toxin. The Company has received signed contracts for all four of these projects. The Company expects that funding under these signed contracts will be completed over the next 12 months. During the six months ended June 30, 2008, the Company recognized \$1,906,715 in research contract revenue from these contracts. As of June 30, 2008, approximately \$5.2 million in additional funding remains available under these contracts.

The likelihood of the long-term success of the Company must be considered in light of the expenses, difficulties and delays frequently encountered in the development and commercialization of new pharmaceutical products, competitive factors in the marketplace as well as the

complex regulatory environment in which the Company operates. There can be no assurance that the Company will ever achieve significant revenues or profitable operations.

Note 3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2008, the FASB ratified EITF Issue No. 07-5, Determining Whether an Instrument (or Embedded Feature) Is Indexed to an Entity s Own Stock (EITF 07-5). Equity-linked instruments (or embedded features) that otherwise meet the definition of a derivative as outlined in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, are not be accounted for as derivatives if certain criteria are met, one of which is that the instrument (or embedded feature) must be indexed to the entity s stock. EITF 07-5 provides guidance on how to determine if equity-linked instruments (or embedded features) such as warrants to purchase our stock, our convertible notes and convertible note hedges are considered indexed to our stock. EITF 07-5 is effective for the financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2008 and will be applied to outstanding instruments as of the beginning of the fiscal year in which it is adopted. Upon adoption, a cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded, if necessary, based on amounts that would have been recognized if this guidance had been applied from the issuance date of the affected instruments. We are currently determining the impact that EITF 07-05 will have on our financial statements, if any.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), Business Combinations (SFAS 141(R)) and SFAS No. 160, Accounting and Reporting of Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements an amendment of ARB No. 51 (SFAS 160). These standards will significantly change the accounting and reporting for business combination transactions and noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidated financial statements, including capitalizing at the acquisition date the fair value of acquired in-process research and development (IPR&D), and testing for impairment and writing down these assets, if necessary, in subsequent periods during their development. These new standards will be applied prospectively for business combinations that occur on or after January 1, 2009, except that presentation and disclosure requirements of SFAS 160 regarding noncontrolling interests shall be applied retrospectively.

10

Table of Contents

Note 4. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is calculated using the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period, and diluted EPS is computed using the weighted average number of common shares and dilutive common equivalent shares outstanding. Given that the Company is in a loss position, there is no difference between basic EPS and diluted EPS since the common stock equivalents would be antidilutive.

The Company s basic and diluted EPS were as follows for the periods indicated:

Three Months Ended June 30,	2008	2007
Net loss	\$ (1,750,622)	\$ (7,781,303)
Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock		
equivalents outstanding:		
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic		
earnings per share	70,985.520	53,560,360
Dilutive effect of warrants and stock options after application of the treasury stock		
method	*	*
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing diluted		
earnings per share	70,985,520	53,560,360
Net loss per share - basic and diluted	\$ (0.02)	\$ (0.15)
Six Months Ended June 30,	2008	2007
Six Months Ended June 30, Net loss	\$ 2008 (16,765,098)	
	\$ 	
Net loss	\$ 	
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock	\$ 	
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding:	\$ 	
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding: Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic	\$ (16,765,098)	\$ (16,005,587)
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding: Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic earnings per share	\$ (16,765,098)	\$ (16,005,587)
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding: Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic earnings per share Dilutive effect of warrants and stock options after application of the treasury stock	\$ (16,765,098) 68,153,753	\$ (16,005,587) 53,381,256
Net loss Weighted average number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding: Weighted average number of common shares outstanding for computing basic earnings per share Dilutive effect of warrants and stock options after application of the treasury stock method	\$ (16,765,098) 68,153,753	\$ (16,005,587) 53,381,256

^{*} Warrants and stock options to purchase 19,524,178 and 14,972,199 shares of common stock as of June 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, were excluded from the earnings per share calculation as their effect would have been antidilutive.

Note 5. Comprehensive Loss and securities available for sale

Comprehensive loss includes charges or credits to equity that did not result from transactions with shareholders. The Company s only component of other comprehensive loss is unrealized gain (loss) on cash equivalents and short-term securities available-for-sale. Accordingly, such investment securities are stated on the balance sheet at their fair market value. The Company classifies its investment securities with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase as cash equivalents. The Company classifies its investment securities with an original maturity of more than three months from the date of purchase as short-term securities available-for-sale. Any unrealized difference between the adjusted cost and the fair market value of these securities is reflected as a separate component of shareholders—equity. At June 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, there were no unrealized gains on the Company—s investments in marketable securities. The following table sets forth the calculation of comprehensive loss for the periods indicated:

	Three Months Ended June 30,			Six Months Ended June 30,			
		2008		2007	2008		2007
Net loss	\$	(1,750,622)	\$	(7,781,303) \$	(16,765,098)	\$	(16,005,587)
Unrealized loss on marketable securities				(16,377)			(18,418)
Total comprehensive loss	\$	(1,750,622)	\$	(7,797,680) \$	(16,765,098)	\$	(16,024,005)

Note 6. Acquisition of Ercole

On March 20, 2008, the Company acquired all of the stock of Ercole Biotechnology, Inc. (Ercole) in exchange for 5,647,016 shares of AVI common stock. The transaction included the assumption of \$1.5 million in liabilities of Ercole. The AVI common stock was valued at approximately \$8.1 million. AVI also issued warrants to purchase AVI stock to settle certain outstanding warrants held in Ercole, which were valued at \$0.4 million. These warrants are classified in equity. The acquisition was aimed at consolidating AVI s position in directed alternative RNA splicing therapeutics. Ercole and the Company had been collaborating since 2006 to develop drug candidates, including AVI-4658, currently in clinical testing in the United Kingdom for the treatment of Duchenne muscular dystrophy. Ercole has other ongoing discovery research programs.

Ercole has been a development stage company since inception and does not have a product for sale. The Company is retaining a limited number of Ercole employees and plans on incorporating in-process technology of Ercole into the Company s processes. The acquisition of Ercole did not meet the definition of a business under EITF 98-3 *Determining Whether a Nonmonetary Transaction Involves Receipt of Productive Assets or of a Business.* and, therefore, is being accounted for as an asset acquisition.

The total estimated purchase price of \$10.3 million has been allocated as follows:

Cash	\$ 54,000
A/R	\$ 76,000
Prepaid Expenses	\$ 7,000
Fixed Assets	\$ 10,000
Patents	\$ 190,000
Acquired In-Process Research and Development	\$ 9,916,000

Table of Contents

The acquired pending patents have an expected expiration date of 2026. Acquired in-process research and development consists of other discovery research programs in areas including beta thalassemia and soluble tumor necrosis factor receptor. As these programs were in development at the time of acquisition, there were significant risks associated with completing these projects, and there were no alternative future uses for these projects, the associated value has been considered acquired in-process research and development.

Note 7. Other current assets

Amounts included in other current assets are as follows:

	June 30, 2008	December 31, 200	07
Prepaid expenses	\$ 701,159	\$ 388,	371
Prepaid rents	113,254	96,	077
Restricted cash	279,555	282,	830
Other current assets	\$ 1,093,968	\$ 767,	278

Starting in April 2006, the Company was required to pledge \$150,000 as collateral for company credit cards issued to certain employees. Starting in April 2007, the Company was required to pledge \$125,000 as collateral for payments on long-term debt. The Company classifies these amounts as restricted cash. As of June 30, 2008, restricted cash including accrued interest was \$279,555. The remaining components of other current assets include normally occurring prepaid expenses and rents.

Note 8. Deferred Revenue

At June 30, 2008, the Company had deferred revenue of \$2,275,000, which represents up-front fees received from third parties pursuant to certain contractual arrangements. The Company will recognize the revenue from these contracts upon the achievement of certain performance milestones, as specified in the agreements.

Note 9. Income Taxes

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, which did not materially impact its consolidated financial statements. No unrecognized tax benefits were recorded as of the date of adoption. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, the Company did not recognize any liability for unrecognized tax benefits. There are no unrecognized tax benefits included in the balance sheet that would, if recognized, affect the effective tax rate.

The Company s policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. The Company had no accrual for interest or penalties on its balance sheet at June 30, 2008 and at December 31, 2007, and has not recognized interest and/or penalties in the

statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2008.

Table of Contents

At June 30, 2008, the Company had net deferred tax assets of approximately \$95 million. The deferred tax assets are primarily composed of federal and state tax net operating loss carryforwards, federal and state R&D credit carryforwards, share-based compensation expense and intangibles. Due to uncertainties surrounding its ability to generate future taxable income to realize these assets, a full valuation allowance has been established to offset its net deferred tax asset. Additionally, the Internal Revenue Code rules under Section 382 could limit the future use of its net operating loss and R&D credit carryforwards to offset future taxable income based on ownership changes and the value of the Company s stock.

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations

This section should be read in conjunction with the same titled section contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC for the year ended December 31, 2007 and the Risk Factors contained in such report.

Forward-Looking Information

The Financial Statements and Notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the following discussion. The discussion in this Form 10-Q contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements are identified by such words as believe, expect, anticipate and words of similar import. All statements other than historical or current facts, including, without limitation, statements about our business strategy, plans and objectives of management and our future prospects, are forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited to, the results of research and development efforts, the success of raising funds in the current offering or future offerings under our current shelf registration, the results of pre-clinical and clinical testing, the effect of regulation by FDA and other agencies, the impact of competitive products, product development, commercialization and technological difficulties, and other risks detailed in the Company s Securities and Exchange Commission filings, that could cause actual results to differ materially from the expected results reflected in such forward looking statements.

Overview

From our inception in 1980, we have devoted our resources primarily to fund our research and development efforts. We have been unprofitable since inception and, other than limited interest, license fees, grants and research contracts, we have had no material revenues from the sale of products or other sources, and we do not expect material revenues for the foreseeable future. We expect to continue to incur losses for the foreseeable future as we continue to expand our research and development efforts and enter into additional collaborative efforts. As of June 30, 2008, the Company s accumulated deficit was \$243,122,653.

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

Revenues, from license fees, grants and research contracts, increased to \$4,982,963 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$2,351,424 in the second quarter of 2007, primarily due to increases in research contract revenues of \$2,636,349, partially offset by decreases in grant revenues of \$4,811. Revenues, from license fees, grants and research contracts, increased to \$10,607,580 for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from \$2,887,466 for the comparable period in 2007, due to increases in research contract revenues of \$7,737,224, partially offset by decreases in grant revenues of \$24,311.

Operating expenses decreased to \$9,861,494 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$11,191,612 in the second quarter of 2007, primarily due to decreases in research and development, which decreased to \$8,164,698 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$9,160,816 in the second quarter of 2007. Operating expenses increased to \$29,233,255 for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from \$21,813,138 for the comparable period of 2007, due primarily to \$9,916,271 of acquired in-process research and development associated with the acquisition of Ercole Biotechnology, Inc (Ercole) and to increases in research and development, which increased to \$15,637,509 in the first half of 2008 from \$15,478,457 in the first half of 2007. This research and development decrease in the second quarter of 2008 was due primarily to decreases in government research contract expenses of approximately \$1,750,000, decreases for contracting costs for the production of GMP subunits, which are used by the Company to manufacture compounds for future clinical trials of approximately \$330,000, and decreases in amortization of leaseholds of approximately \$135,000. These research and development decreases in the second quarter of 2008 were partially offset by increases in professional consultant costs of approximately \$300,000, increases in the purchases of equipment for government research contracts of approximately \$290,000, increases in net clinical expenses of approximately \$230,000, severance payments to certain Ercole employees of approximately \$216,000, and increases in employee costs of approximately \$140,000. The research and development increase for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was due primarily to increases in compensation costs of approximately \$770,000, severance payments to certain Ercole employees of approximately \$617,000, increases in net clinical expenses of approximately \$570,000, and increases in the purchases of equipment for government research contracts of approximately \$65,000, partially offset by decreases in government research contract expenses of approximately \$950,000, decreases for contracting costs for the production of GMP subunits, which are used by the Company to manufacture compounds for future clinical trials of approximately \$300,000, decreases in amortization of leaseholds of approximately \$270,000, decreases in chemical costs of approximately \$250,000, and decreases in professional consultant costs of approximately \$125,000.

The remaining decrease in operating expenses was due to general and administrative costs decreasing to \$1,696,796 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$2,030,796 in the second quarter of 2007 and to \$3,679,475 in the first half of 2008 from \$6,334,681 in the first half of 2007. This general and administrative decrease in the second quarter of 2008 was due primarily to decreases legal expenses of approximately \$215,000, employee costs of approximately \$52,000, and public and investor relations costs of approximately \$51,000. This general and administrative decrease for the six months ended June 30, 2008 was due primarily to decreases in employee costs of approximately \$2,210,000, of which approximately

Table of Contents

\$1,620,000 (including \$562,500 in cash compensation and \$1,057,372 in SFAS 123R expenses) was related to the Separation and Release Agreement with the Company s former Chief Executive Officer during the first quarter of 2007, as well as, decreases in SFAS 123R expenses of approximately \$600,000. General and administrative expenses also includes decreases in legal expenses of approximately \$360,000 and public and investor relations costs of approximately \$76,000.

Net interest income decreased to \$80,450 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$303,568 in the second quarter of 2007 and to \$247,802 for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from \$666,077 for the comparable period in 2007 due to decreases in average cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities and by decreases in average interest rates of the Company s interest earning investments. Gain on warrant liability increased to \$3,047,459 in the second quarter of 2008 from \$755,317 in the second quarter of 2007. Gain on warrant liability decreased to \$1,612,775 for the six months ended June 30, 2008 from \$2,254,008 for the comparable period in 2007. The gain (loss) on warrant liability is primarily a function of the Company s stock price and fluctuates as the market price of the Company s stock fluctuates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company does not expect any material revenues in 2008 or 2009 from its business activities, other than from potential government grants and research contracts. The Company expects that its cash requirements through 2008 will be satisfied by existing cash resources. To fund its operations beyond the first quarter of 2009, the Company will need to secure additional funds. Such funds could come from technology license fees, government grants and research contracts, and the capital markets.

In December 2006, the Company announced the execution of a two-year \$28 million research contract with the Defense Threat Reduction Agency (DTRA), an agency of the United States Department of Defense (DoD). In February 2008, the contract was extended into the first five months of 2009. The contract is directed toward funding the Company s development of antisense therapeutics to treat the effects of Ebola, Marburg and Junin hemorrhagic viruses, which are seen by DoD as potential biological warfare and bioterrorism agents. Funding under this contract is expected over three years, with approximately \$24.5 million committed through the end of 2008 (including amounts received in 2007), and the remainder anticipated in the first five months of 2009. The Company recognized \$4,685,758 and \$8,630,830 in research contract revenues from this contract in the second quarter and first six months of 2008, respectively.

In January 2006, the Company announced that the final version of the 2006 defense appropriations act had been approved, which included an allocation of \$11.0 million to fund the Company s ongoing defense-related programs. Net of government administrative costs, it is anticipated that the Company will receive up to \$9.8 million under this allocation. The Company s NEUGEN® technology is expected to be used to continue developing therapeutic agents against Ebola, Marburg and dengue viruses, as well as to continue developing countermeasures for anthrax exposure and antidotes for ricin toxin. The Company has received signed contracts for all four of these projects. The Company expects that funding under these signed contracts will be received over the next 12 months. In the quarter and six-month period ended June 30, 2008, the Company recognized \$275,955 and \$1,906,715, respectively, in

Table of Contents

research contract revenues from this contract. As of June 30, 2008, approximately \$5.2 million in additional funding remains available under these contracts.

The Company s cash, cash equivalents and short-term securities were \$18,786,092 at June 30, 2008, compared with \$25,074,413 at December 31, 2007. The decrease of \$6,288,321 was due primarily to \$5,637,058 used in operations and \$602,717 used for purchases of property and equipment and patent related costs. This decrease also included approximately \$900,000 paid to Ercole for its use in retiring certain of its debts prior to closing of the Ercole asset purchase.

The Company s short-term securities may include certificates of deposit, commercial paper and other highly liquid investments with original maturities in excess of 90 days at the time of purchase and less than one year from the balance sheet date. The Company classifies its investment securities as available-for-sale and, accordingly, such investment securities are stated on the balance sheet at their fair market value with unrealized gains (losses) recorded as a separate component of shareholders equity and comprehensive income (loss).

The Company s future expenditures and capital requirements depend on numerous factors, most of which are difficult to project beyond the short term, including, without limitation, the progress of its research and development programs, the progress of its pre-clinical and clinical trials, the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatory approvals, the cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights, competing technological and market developments, its ability to establish collaborative arrangements and the terms of any such arrangements, and the costs associated with commercialization of its products. The Company s cash requirements are expected to continue to increase each year as the Company expands its activities and operations. There can be no assurance, however, that the Company will ever be able to generate product revenues or achieve or sustain profitability.

The Company expects to continue to incur losses as it continues its research and development activities and related regulatory work and collaborative efforts. For 2008, the Company expects expenditures for operations, net of government funding, including collaborative efforts, and GMP facilities to be approximately \$14 to \$16 million. Expenditures for 2008 could increase if the Company undertakes additional collaborative efforts. If necessary, however, the Company s management has the ability to significantly curtail certain expenditures because a significant amount of the Company s costs are variable.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of the Company s financial condition and results of operations are based upon its financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company s critical accounting policies and estimates are consistent with the disclosure in the Company s Form 10-K, with the exception of FIN 48 (see Note 9).

Table	e of	Contents

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

There has been no material change in the Company s market risk exposure since the filing of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of June 30, 2008, the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Based on this review of its disclosure controls and procedures, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that its disclosure controls and procedures are effective in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company that is required to be included in our periodic SEC filings.

Internal Controls and Procedures

There were no significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect these controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses.

18

Table	αf	Contents
1 autc	UΙ	Contents

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.	Legal	Proceedings.

None

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no substantial changes in the Company s Risk Factors contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K as filed with the SEC for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

In connection with the Company s acquisition of Ercole Biotech, Inc., which closed on March 20, 2008, the Company issued at closing an aggregate of 5,647,016 shares of our common stock valued at \$1.3161 per share to the holders of the outstanding shares of Ercole capital stock in exchange for the shares of Ercole capital stock held by them. The aggregate value of the shares of common stock issued at closing was \$7,432,038. 621,158 of the 5,647,016 shares, or 11% of the shares issued by the Company in the merger, were delivered to an escrow account in connection with the indemnification obligations contained in the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among the Company, EB Acquisition Corp., and Ercole Biotech, Inc. dated March 12, 2008. Any shares remaining in the escrow account will be distributed to Ercole s stockholders one year after the closing of the merger. The shares of the Company s common stock issued as consideration in the acquisition were issued in an offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Consistent with the provisions of Rule 506, there were fewer than 35 purchasers in the offering. Additionally, the Company reasonably believes that immediately prior to the sale of shares to each purchaser in the offering who was not an accredited investor, each such purchaser, either alone or with the assistance of the purchaser representative provided to such purchaser in connection with the offering, had such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that the purchaser was capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment. All of the shares issued by the Company to Ercole s stockholders were subsequently registered for resale pursuant to the Company s Registration Statement on Form S-3 declared effective by the SEC on May 16, 2008 and the related 424(b)(3) prospectus filed with the SEC on May 19, 2008.

The shares of the Company s common stock issued as consideration in the acquisition were issued in an offering exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, pursuant to Rule 506 of Regulation D promulgated thereunder. Consistent with the provisions of Rule 506, there were fewer than 35 purchasers in the offering. Additionally, the Company reasonably believes that immediately prior to the sale of shares to each purchaser in the offering who was not an accredited investor, each such purchaser, either alone or with the assistance of the purchaser representative provided to such purchaser in connection with the offering, had such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that the purchaser was capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment.

Item 3 Defaults Upon Senior Securities.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

On May 20, 2008, at the Annual Meeting of the Company's Shareholders (Annual Meeting), the shareholders approved each of the proposals set forth in the Company's Proxy Statement dated April 15, 2008, briefly described below:

(i) The shareholders were requested to elect and elected the following individuals to the Board of Directors:

Nominee	For	Withheld
Michael D. Casey	55,568,967	1,809,396
William Goolsbee	55,948,720	1,429,643
Gil Price, M.D.	55,944,215	1,434,148

Besides the foregoing directors, the following directors whose term expires in 2009 continued as directors following the Annual Meeting: John C. Hodgman, John W. Fara, Ph.D., K. Michael Forrest and Leslie Hudson, Ph.D.

(ii) The shareholders were asked to approve the selection of KPMG LLP as the Company s independent auditors. The proposal was approved by the shareholders, as 56,867,161 votes were cast for the proposal, 298,321 votes were against and 212,881 votes abstained.

Table of Contents

Item 5. Other Information.

None

Item 6. Exhibits

			Incorporated by Reference to Filings Indicated			
			•	·	Filing	Filed
Exhibit No	Exhibit Description	Form	File No.	Exhibit	Date	Herewith
3.1	Third Restated Articles of Incorporation of AntiVirals Inc.	SB-2	333-20513	3.1	5/29/97	
3.2	First Restated Bylaws of AVI BioPharma, Inc.	8-K	1-14895	3.5	2/7/08	
3.3	First Amendment to Third Restated Articles of Incorporation	8-K	0-22613	3.3	9/30/98	
3.4	Amendment to Article 2 of the Company s Third Restated Articles of Incorporation	DEF 14A	1-14895	N/A	4/11/02	
10.64	Employment Agreement dated April 10, 2008 by and between AVI BioPharma, Inc. and Dr. Ryszard Kole.					X
31.1	Certification of the Company s Chief Executive Officer, Leslie Hudson, Ph.D, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002					X
31.2	Certification of Chief Financial Officer, Mark M. Webber, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002					X
32	Certification of the Company s Chief Executive Officer, Leslie Hudson, Ph.D, and Chief Financial Officer, Mark M. Webber, pursuant to Section 906 of the					X
	Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002					

Materials in the exhibit marked with a + have been omitted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Date: August 11, 2008 AVI BIOPHARMA, INC.

By: /s/ LESLIE HUDSON, Ph.D.

Leslie Hudson, Ph.D. Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ MARK M. WEBBER

Mark M. Webber

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Information

Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

21